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General information about the academic discipline
	Name of the academic course 
	Corporate social responsibility of business

	Code and name of the speciality
	D3 ‘Management’

	Level of higher education
	Second (Master's) Level of Higher Education

	Status of the discipline
	Optional

	Number of credits and hours
	3 credits / 90 hours

Lectures: 

Seminar classes: 

Independent work of students:

	Terms of study of the discipline
	

	Language of instruction
	Ukrainian

	Type of final assessment
	Credit

	Page of the discipline on the website
	


General information about the lecturer. Contact information.
	Kryshtal Halyna Oleksandrivna

	Scientific degree
	Doctor of Economic Sciences

	Academic title
	professor

	Position
	Head of the Department of Finance, Banking and Insurance

	Disciplines taught by NPP
	Management of financial risks, project financing, management of financial rehabilitation of the enterprise, international investment activity, banking operations

	Areas of scientific research
	Finance, money and credit

	Links to identifier registers for scientists
	https://www.scopus.com/authid/detail.uri?authorId=57223340559
https://scholar.google.com.ua/citations?user=YaDXlvsAAAAJ&hl=uk

	Contact information of the lecturer::

	E-mail:
	gkryshtal@ukr.net

	Contact phone number
	 097 87 93 904

	The teacher's portfolio on the website of the department /Institute /Academy
	https://maup.com.ua/ua/pro-akademiyu/instituti/institut-ekonomiki/kafedra-bank-strahovoi-spravi/krishtal-galina-oleksandrivna.html 


Course abstract. The discipline «Financial risk management» is aimed at the formation of knowledge, abilities and skills in the acquisition of knowledge, analysis, assessment and minimization of financial risks in the activities of enterprises, banking institutions and organizations. The course examines modern approaches to risk management, methods of quantitative and qualitative assessment of financial risks, as well as tools for their forecasting and control in order to ensure financial stability and efficiency of management decisions.
The acquired competencies are important for future managers, financial analysts, risk management specialists, employees of financial institutions and public administration bodies, as well as for everyone involved in financial decision-making in conditions of uncertainty. The course combines theoretical provisions with practical risk analysis tools, contributing to the development of professional training and the ability to respond effectively to financial threats.
The subject of the academic discipline «Financial risk management» is the regularities of the emergence, development and impact of financial risks on the activities of enterprises and organizations, as well as methods of their identification, assessment, forecasting and management for the purpose of making informed management decisions.
The purpose of studying the discipline is to form in the acquirers the ability to apply the methodology, methods and tools of financial risk management to analyze and minimize their impact on the results of financial and economic activity, which ensures the solution of complex economic and management tasks in the field of management and finance.
Tasks of the academic discipline: familiarization of students with the theoretical foundations of financial risk management; formation of skills in identification and classification of financial risks; development of skills in applying methods of quantitative and qualitative risk assessment; training in methods of forecasting risk situations and substantiating management decisions in conditions of uncertainty; formation of the ability to use modern financial and analytical tools for risk management; development of analytical thinking and the ability to make effective management decisions in conditions of financial instability.

Prerequisites of the academic discipline. Studying the academic discipline «Financial risk management» is based on the knowledge and skills acquired by students at the bachelor's level, in particular in the following disciplines: higher mathematics, statistics, microeconomics, macroeconomics, finance, enterprise finance, enterprise economics.

Post-requests of the academic discipline. The knowledge and skills acquired by students in the process of studying the academic discipline «Financial risk management» contribute to the successful assimilation of other academic disciplines aimed at the formation of professional competences, in particular: financial management, strategic management, banking management, business management, risk management, change management.
Content of the academic discipline (full-time education)
	№
	Theme name
	Teaching methods /

Assessment methods

	CONTENT MODULE 1. Theoretical and methodological principles of financial risks and tools for their identification
	Teaching methods: verbal (educational lecture; conversation; educational discussion); 

inductive method; deductive method; 

analytical method; synthetic method; 

practical (working with economic models, statistics, graphs); 

Explanatory and illustrative; reproductive; 

problem presentation method; 

partially-search; 

Research; 

interactive methods (analysis of economic situations; discussions, debates; brainstorming; situational modeling; practice of modeling skills); 

case method (analysis of real economic situations, search for problems, proposal of solutions, construction of models); 

modeling of professional activity (building economic models, forecasting, scenario modeling).
Assessment methods: oral control (oral survey, evaluation of participation in discussions, other interactive learning methods); written control (control, independent works, analytical tasks, essays); 

test control (closed form tests: test alternative, test compliance, data and model analysis tasks); self-control and self-assessment method; 

assessment of case tasks; 

evaluation of project and laboratory works (simulation of economic processes, forecasting).

	Theme  1.
	Factors of uncertainty in financial and financial services markets and main types of risks
	

	Theme  2.
	Risks of financial transactions and borrowing services and their management
	

	Theme  3.
	Currency risks and their management
	

	Theme  4.
	Interest rate risks and their management
	

	Theme  5.
	Financial crises and crashes: causes and possibilities of forecasting
	

	CONTENT MODULE 2. Instrumental and strategic financial risk management mechanisms
	

	Theme  6.
	Transactions with securities and management of borrowing risks through the stock market mechanism
	

	Theme  7. 
	Hedging the financial risks of transactions with financial assets using derivatives
	

	Theme  8.
	Development of strategies for the use of derivatives in the management of financial risks of companies
	

	Theme  9.
	Insurance of financial risks as an element of financial security of economic entities
	

	Theme  10.
	Integrated financial risk management system (RMS) in the activities of companies and banks
	

	
	
	

	Modular test

	Form of assessment: credit


Technical equipment and/or software. The educational process uses classrooms, a library, a multimedia projector and a computer to conduct lecture and seminar classes with elements of presentation. Studying certain topics of the discipline and performing practical tasks of analysis, assessment and minimization of financial risks requires access to information from the worldwide Internet, which is provided by a free Wi-Fi network.
Forms and methods of control.

Success control of students in the discipline «Financial risk management is divided into current and final (semester).

Current control is carried out during practical and seminar classes. Its purpose is systematic verification:

• understanding and mastering the theoretical foundations of financial risk management;

• the ability to apply the acquired knowledge to analyze financial transactions and risk situations;

• skills in identification, assessment and minimization of financial risks;

• use of analytical and information tools in the process of financial risk management.

Forms of student participation in the educational process, which are subject to current control:

• speeches and presentations on financial risk analysis;

• oral reports on the analysis of financial cases;

• additions, questions to the person answering;

• systematic work at seminar classes and activity during discussions;

• participation in discussions, brainstorming, interactive forms of classes;

• analysis of financial indicators, risk situations and risk management tools;

• written tasks (control works, test tasks, analytical and abstract works);

• preparation of synopses, theses, analytical notes;

• independent study of discipline topics and lecture materials.

Current control methods:

• oral control (survey, conversation, report, message);

• written control (control work, analytical report, abstract);

• combined control (combination of oral and written forms of assessment);

• presentation of the results of independent work or case analysis;

• observation of activity and participation in practical classes;

• test control (closed and open tasks);

• work with problematic financial situations (case analysis).
Assessment system and requirements.

Table of points awarded to higher education students*

	Themes
	Ongoing knowledge assessment
	Final control
	

	
	
	Modular test
	Credit**
	Overall number of points

	
	Theme 1
	Theme 2
	Theme 3
	Theme 4
	Theme 5
	Theme 6
	Theme 7
	Theme 8
	Theme 9
	Theme 10
	20
	20*
	100

	Work during the seminar
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	
	
	

	Independent work
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	
	
	


*The table contains information about the maximum points for each type of academic work of a higher education applicant.

When assessing the mastery of each topic for the current academic activity, applicants are given grades based on the approved assessment criteria for the relevant discipline.

The criteria for assessing the learning outcomes of students and the distribution of points they receive are regulated by the Regulations on the Assessment of Academic Achievement of Higher Education Students at PJSC ‘Higher Educational Institution ’MAUP".

Modular control is carried out in the last class of the module in written form, in the form of a test.

Criteria for assessing the modular test in the academic discipline ‘Consolidation of Financial Statements’:

When assessing the modular test, the volume and correctness of the tasks are taken into account:

- a grade of ‘excellent’ (A) is given for the correct completion of all tasks (or more than 90% of all tasks);

- a ‘good’ (B) grade is given for completing 80% of all tasks;

- a ‘good’ (C) grade is given for completing 70% of all tasks;

- a ‘satisfactory’ (D) grade is given for correctly completing 60% of the proposed tasks;

- A grade of ‘satisfactory’ (E) is given for the correct completion of more than 50% of the proposed tasks.

- A grade of ‘unsatisfactory’ (FX) is given for the completion of less than 50% of the tasks.

Failure to attend the module test results in 0 points.

The above grades are converted into rating points as follows: 

«А» - 18-20 points;

«В» - 16-17 points;

«С» - 14-15 points;

«D» - 12-13 points.

«E» - 10-11 points;

«FX» - less than 10 points.
The final semester assessment in the discipline ‘Consolidation of Financial Statements’ is a mandatory form of assessing the learning outcomes of students. It is conducted within the time frame specified in the curriculum and covers the scope of material specified in the course programme.

The final assessment is conducted in the form of a test. Applicants who have completed all the necessary work are admitted to the semester assessment.

The final grade is based on the applicant's learning outcomes during the semester. The applicant's grade consists of points accumulated from the results of the current assessment and incentive points.

Students who have completed all the necessary tasks and received a score of 60 points or higher receive a grade corresponding to the score received, without additional testing.

For students who have completed all the necessary tasks but received a grade below 60 points, as well as for those who wish to improve their score (result), the teacher conducts a final assessment in the form of a test during the last scheduled class of the discipline in the academic semester.

Assessment of additional (individual) types of educational activities. Assessment of additional (individual) types of educational activities. Additional (individual) types of educational activities include the participation of students in scientific conferences, scientific circles of students and problem groups, preparation of publications, participation in All-Ukrainian Olympiads and competitions and international competitions, etc., in addition to the tasks set by the relevant work programme of the academic discipline. 

By decision of the department, applicants who have participated in research work and performed certain types of additional (individual) types of educational activities may be awarded incentive (bonus) points for a specific educational component.

Assessment of independent work

The total number of points received by the student for completing independent work is one of the components of academic performance in the discipline. Independent work on each topic, in accordance with the course programme, is assessed on a scale of 0 to 3 points using standardised and generalised criteria for assessing knowledge.

Assessment scale for independent work (individual assignments) assessment criteria.
	Maximum possible grade for independent work (individual assignments)
	Level of implementation

	
	Excellent    
	Good    
	Satisfactory    
	Unsatisfactory

	3
	3
	2
	1
	0


Assessment forms include: ongoing assessment of practical work; ongoing assessment of knowledge acquisition based on oral answers, reports, presentations and other forms of participation during practical (seminar) classes; individual or group projects requiring the development of practical skills and competences (optional format); solving situational tasks; preparing summaries of independently studied topics; testing or written exams; preparing draft articles, conference abstracts and other publications; other forms that ensure comprehensive mastery of the curriculum and contribute to the gradual development of skills for effective independent professional (practical, scientific and theoretical) activity at a high level.

To assess the learning outcomes of higher education students during the semester, a 100-point, national and ECTS assessment scale is used.

Final assessment scale: national and ECTS
	Total points for all types of educational activities
	ECTS rating
	Assessment on a national scale

	
	
	for exams, course projects (assignments), practical training
	for credit

	90 – 100
	А
	excellent
	passed 



	82 – 89
	В
	good


	

	75 – 81
	С
	
	

	68 – 74
	D
	satisfactory


	

	60 – 67
	Е
	
	

	35 – 59
	FХ
	unsatisfactory with the possibility of retaking the exam
	Failed with the possibility of retaking the exam

	0 – 34
	F
	unsatisfactory with mandatory retaking of the course
	Failed with mandatory retaking of the course


Course policy. 

To successfully master the course «Financial risk management», the student of education has:

- regularly attend lectures and practical classes;

- systematically, systematically and actively work in lectures and practical classes;

- practice missed classes or unsatisfactory grades obtained in classes;

- to perform in full the tasks required to be prepared by the teacher, their proper quality;

- perform control and other independent work;

- adhere to the norms of academic behavior and ethics.

The course «Financial risk management» involves the assimilation and observance of the principles of ethics and academic integrity, in particular the focus on preventing plagiarism in any of its manifestations: all works, reports, essays, essays and presentations must be original and author's, not overburdened with quotes, which must be accompanied by references to primary sources.  Violations of academic integrity are considered: academic plagiarism, self-plagiarism, fabrication, falsification, write-off, deception, bribery, biased assessment.
Recommended sources of information.

Basic literature
1. Dolinsky L. B. Financial risk management: educational method. manual. Kyiv : National University «Kyiv-Mohyla Academy», 2022. 132 p.

2. Economic risk: assessment and management methods : training. manual. /T. A. Vasilieva, S. IN. Leonov, Ya. M. Kryvych and others. ; in general ed. Dr. economy Sciences, Prof. T. A. Vasilieva, candidate economy Sciences Ya. M. Kryvych. Amounts: DVNZ «UABS NBU», 2015. 208 p.

3. Kushchyk A. P. Risk management: training. manual for master's degree holders majoring in «Finance, banking, insurance and stock market». Zaporizhzhia: Zaporizhzhia National University, 2024. 119 p.

4. Laktionova O. A. Financial risk management : training. manual. Vinnytsia: WORKS, 2020. 256 p.

5. Picus R. Financial risk management : training. manual. Kyiv : Knowledge, 2010. 598 p.

6. Financial risk management : training. manual. /O. A. Laktionova and others. ; in general ed. Dr. Econ. Sciences P. IN. Yehorova. Donetsk: DonNU, 2012. 223 p.

7. Financial risk management : training. manual. / P. O. Kutsyk, T. G. Vasyltsiv, V. M. Sorokivskyi, V. AND. Stefaniak, M. IN. Sorokivska. Lviv: Rastr-7, 2016. 318 p.

8. Financial risks of economic operators : training manual. /O. IN. Kneisler, T. IN. Pismenna, V. IN. Kostetskyi, N. P. Lubkei ; ed. O. IN. Kneisler. Ternopil: Osadtsa Yu. V., 2017. 138 p.

9. Shklyaruk S. G. Financial risk management : training. manual. Kyiv : DP «Ed. home «Personnel», 2019. 494 p.

10. Allen S. L. Financial Risk Management: A Practitioner’s Guide to Managing Market and Credit Risk. Hoboken : John Wiley & Sons, 2015.

11. Chance D. M. Financial Risk Management. World Scientific, 2019. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1142/11321
12. Corelli A. Understanding Financial Risk Management. Emerald Publishing Limited, 2019.

13. Fabozzi F. J. Financial Risk Management. Hoboken : John Wiley & Sons, 2010.

14. Población García F. J. Financial Risk Management. Cham : Springer International Publishing, 2017. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-41366-2
15. Harrington S., Niehaus G. Risk Management and Insurance. 2nd ed. New York : McGraw-Hill, 2004.

16. Rohmeyer P., Bayuk J. L. Financial Cybersecurity Risk Management. Berkeley, CA : Apress, 2019. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4842-4194-3
17. Skoglund J., Chen W. Financial Risk Management. Hoboken : John Wiley & Sons, 2015. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1002/9781119157502
18. Damodaran A. Strategic Risk Taking: A Framework for Risk Management. Upper Saddle River : Pearson Education, 2007. 408 p.

Additional
19.Vitlinskyi V. IN. Riskology in economics and entrepreneurship: monograph. Kyiv: KNEU, 2014. 480 p.

20.Vitlinskyi V. V., Skitsko V. AND. Risk management of supply chains in the conditions of the digital economy. Business Inform. 2018. № 4. S. 384–392.

21.Dyba M. I., Zagorodniy A. G., Podolchak N. YU. Management of financial risks of economic activity of enterprises : monograph. Lviv: ZUKC, 2014. 174 p.

22.Zagurskyi O. Risk management. Kyiv : University «Ukraine», 2016. 244 p.

23.Kovalchuk T. T., Kovalchuk N. P. Macroeconomic risks: classification, measurement methods, ways of minimization. Kyiv: Knowledge, 2012. 301 p.

24.Makarenko Yu. P., Bobyl V. IN. Financial risk management of banks : monograph. Dnipropetrovsk: Gerda, 2014. 265 p.

25.Matviychuk A. IN. Analysis and management of economic risk : training. manual. Kyiv: Center for Educational Literature, 2015. 224 p.

26.Ostankova L. A., Shevchenko N. YU. Analysis, modeling and management of economic risks : textbook. Kyiv: TSUL, 2011. 256 p.

27.Primostka L. O., Lysenyuk O. V., Chub O. O. Banking risks: theory and practice of management : monograph. Kyiv: KNEU, 2015. 456 p.

28.Shishkina O. IN. Mechanism of financial risk management of industrial enterprises: monograph. Chernihiv: ChNTU, 2020. 317 p.

29.Yastremskyi O. AND. Economic risk modeling. Kyiv: Lybid, 2012. 176 p.
Information resources on the Internet

30.Official website of the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine – legislation of Ukraine: http://www.rada.gov.ua

31.Official website of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine: http://www.kmu.gov.ua

32.Official website of the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine: http://www.minfin.gov.ua

33.Official website of the State Statistics Service of Ukraine: http://www.ukrstat.gov.ua

34.Official website of the National Bank of Ukraine: http://www.bank.gov.ua

35.Official website of the National Institute for Strategic Studies: http://www.niss.gov.ua

36.National Open Data Portal: http://www.data.gov.ua

37.Financial and analytical portal: http://finance.ua
